




 

 
 

PLANNING    5800 Shier Rings Road    Dublin, Ohio 43016    phone  614.410.4600    fax  614.410.4747    dublinohiousa.gov 

 

 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

Planning & Zoning Commission 
Thursday, March 16, 2017 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

1. BSD C – Home 2 Hotel           Upper Metro Place 

 17-006MSP        Master Sign Plan (Approved 6 – 0) 

 
2. BSD SRN – Bridge Park, Block A     6540 Riverside Drive 

17-012MSP        Master Sign Plan (Approved 6 – 0) 

 

3. PUD – Ballantrae Woods – Patio         7650 Cosgray Road 
 17-013AFDP             Amended Final Development Plan (Approved 6 – 0) 

 
 

 
The Vice Chair, Chris Brown, called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
Other Commission members present were: Cathy De Rosa, Stephen Stidhem, Bob Miller, Amy Salay, and 

Deborah Mitchell. Victoria Newell was absent. City representatives present were: Phil Hartmann, Vince 
Papsidero, Claudia Husak, Lori Burchett, and Laurie Wright.  

 

Administrative Business 
 

Motion and Vote 
Ms. De Rosa moved, Ms. Salay seconded, to accept the documents into the record. The vote was as 

follows: Mr. Brown, yes; Mr. Miller, yes; Ms. Mitchell, yes; Mr. Stidhem, yes; Ms. Salay, yes; and Ms. De 

Rosa, yes. (Approved 6 - 0) 
 

The Vice Chair briefly explained the rules and procedures of the Planning and Zoning Commission. He 
said all three cases this evening are eligible for the Consent Agenda but they were all pulled at the 

request of the Commissioners. He determined Ballantrae Woods – Patio application would be heard first 
followed by Home 2 then Bridge Park, Block A but they will be recorded in the minutes in the order in 

which they were presented on the agenda. 

 
1. BSD C – Home2 Hotel           Upper Metro Place 

 17-006MSP                Master Sign Plan 
 

The Vice Chair, Chris Brown, said the following application is a Master Sign Plan for two wall signs and a 

monument sign for a hotel on a 2.57-acre parcel, south of SR161, at the intersection with Frantz Road. 
He said this is a request for a review and approval of a Master Sign Plan under the provisions of Zoning 

Code Section 153.066. 

rayfbh
Cross-Out

rayfbh
Cross-Out



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 16, 2017 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 10 of 11 

 

 

3. PUD – Ballantrae Woods – Patio         7650 Cosgray Road 

 17-013AFDP         Amended Final Development Plan 

 
The Vice Chair, Chris Brown, said the following application is a minor Text Modification to permit side 

yard patios/outdoor amenity areas on 15 home sites. He said the development is south of Churchman 
Road, approximately 800 feet southeast of the intersection with Cosgray Road. He said this is a request 

for a review and approval of a Minor Text Modification and an Amended Final Development Plan under 
the provisions of Zoning Code Section 153.050. 

 

Claudia Husak said she was filling in for Logan Stang this evening. She began her presentation by 
showing an aerial view of the site and then the two Subareas, A & B, but this application is only for 

Subarea B, the multi-family section. She recalled that the Commission previously approved a Preliminary 
Development Plan and a Final Development Plan for this development. She said the applicant has 

discovered that there is one particular model of home that is quite popular and she presented a map 

where this home could be located. She explained it has a patio area that is more towards the interior of 
the home rather than the rear so it has a cut-out space that can be a patio or three-season room. In the 

original development, she noted all patio spaces were anticipated to be to the rear of the home so the 
development text language and accompanying graphics currently reflect that limit of patios just to the 

rear. She said the applicant is requesting approval of the extension of this space for approximately eight 

feet on the side of certain lots. She noted the homes on the map, which would be permitted these patios 
for. Planning is supportive of that request she said as the applicant meets all the setback requirements 

and there is additional detail provided for landscaping. She referred to the concern as stated in the 
Planning Report for one particular unit (Lot B22) as it is right at the entrance and the patio space would 

be facing Churchman Road, which is not ideal.  
 

Ms. Husak stated there are two motions before the Commission this evening – one for the text 

modification that really just details all the site patio amenities with the exception of Lot B22, which would 
not be permitted this side patio and the other motion for the Amended Final Development Plan 

requesting unit B22 be removed. 
 

Chris Brown asked if the landscaping would still occur on Lot B22 if the patio is not there. Ms. Husak said 

it would depend on whether it would be a patio or a more enclosed space like a three-season room.  
 

The Vice Chair invited the applicant to speak in regard to this application. 
 

David Parsley, 140 Mill Street, Gahanna, Ohio, 43230, said he is the VP of Marketing and Sales.  
 

Mr. Parsley confirmed Lot B22 would have landscaping if there was a patio there or not. Mr. Brown said 

he was concerned since it is right at the entrance. Mr. Parsley said it is not a requirement but a 
homeowner would purchase that exact design on that lot. He added if they do not have the patio, that 

design comes with an interior covered porch and 100% of their owners have requested transitional space 
off of the covered porch. He said the applicant thinks this is a great addition to the community based on 

the people in contract to purchase homes and folks that are prospective purchasers. He said they want a 

place to sun bathe and an area for potted plants, etc. 
 

Bob Miller asked why Lot B22 would be removed. Ms. Husak explained staff was originally slightly 
concerned about 4 or 5 lots in terms of it is a patio that will contain a lot of patio furniture, etc. She 

noted a couple of the lots are in a similar location in terms of the patio space facing north/Churchman 

Road, but the sidewalk is on the other side so there is a bit more privacy. She emphasized that the 
entrance to the community comes right in to Lot B22 from Churchman Road, if one is seated on a patio.  

 
The Vice Chair invited public comment. [There were none.] 

 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 16, 2017 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 11 of 11 

 

 

Mr. Miller said he is fine with Lot B22 being included as this is a great enhancement for the entire 

development. Deborah Mitchell said she agreed with Mr. Miller. Cathy De Rosa said she agrees with 

Planning because it would make for a more pleasant entry. Steve Stidhem said he would agree with 
Planning as well for the reason Ms. De Rosa just stated. Amy Salay said she also agrees with Planning’s 

recommendation.  
 

Motion and Vote 
Ms. De Rosa motioned, Ms. Salay seconded, to approve the Minor Text Modification as follows: 

 

1. To outline side yard Patios/Outdoor Amenity Areas that shall be permitted only on the following 
homes: B6, B7, B10, B18, B19, B22, B30, B41, B64, B70, B72, B82, and B86. Side Yard 

patios/outdoor amenity areas shall be setback a minimum of 14 feet from any private drive and a 
minimum of 10 feet from any adjacent home and any adjacent patio. 

2. To require Patios/Outdoor Amenity Areas to not be greater than the width of the home and shall 

not extend greater than 15’ from the rear building façade nor 8’ from the side building façade. 
 

The applicant agreed to the Text Modification. 
 

The vote was as follows: Mr. Stidhem, yes; Ms. Mitchell, yes; Mr. Miller, yes; Mr. Brown, yes; Ms. Salay, 

yes; and Ms. De Rosa, yes. (Approved 6 – 0) 
 

Motion and Vote 
Ms. De Rosa motioned, Ms. Salay seconded to approve the Amended Final Development Plan with two 

conditions: 
 

1) That Unit B22 be removed from the permitted side yard patio/outdoor amenity area list; and 

 
2) That the applicant work with staff to determine an appropriate depth for the side yard 

patio/outdoor amenity areas and the development text be revised to include that requirement 
prior to filing for building permits. 

 

The applicant agreed to the two conditions as stated. 
 

The vote was as follows: Mr. Miller, yes; Ms. Mitchell, yes; Mr. Stidhem, yes; Mr. Brown, yes; Ms. Salay, 
yes; and Ms. De Rosa, yes. (Approved 6 – 0) 

 
Planning Items 

Vincent Papsidero said the April 17th joint Work Session will be very full including West Bridge Street 

Framework Plan, sharing a big development concept based on the work that has been done to date, 
proposed changes to the West Innovation District Zoning Code, and the Dublin Corporate Area Plan, and 

the Bridge Street District Code update, which has required work from a consultant. He said there will be a 
great deal of material to cover in a two-hour timeframe but the goal is to get the green light from 

Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council relative to all these pieces to answer if we are moving 

in the right direction or not. It is an important meeting he said so we can move forward to get these 
ready for adoption later in the year.  

 
Amy Salay requested the volume of materials be delivered earlier to permit more time for review. 

 

Mr. Papsidero answered Planning would shoot for a week in advance. He stated most of that material is 
summarized already in a PowerPoint presentation so written Code language will not be included. 

 
The Vice Chair adjourned the meeting at 7:49 pm. 

As approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 20, 2017.  

rayfbh
Cross-Out



BALLANTR AE PL

FORE STH A V E NLOOP

WOOD
DU CK

DR
MALLARD DR

MARMION D R

2ND AVE
CORMAC LN WATERS EDGE DR

BALLANT R AE CIR
GLENDAVON

L O OP

NE W T ONMORE PL

GLENDAVON PL

RINGS RD

COSGRAY RD

R

R R

PLR

PLR

PLR

PLR
PLR

R

R

R R

R-1

R

PUD

PUDSITE

17-013AFDP
Amended Final Development Plan- Minor

Ballantrae Woods
7650 Cosgray Road

0 500250
Feet F

PLR

R



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

Minutes of __________ _.o ..... 1 .... 1b-li .... n_.C .... ity'-¥-'C .... a ..... 1 ..... 1n ... c ..... il ___________ Meeting 
BARRETI BROTHERS· DAYTON, OHIO Form 6101 

Held 
November 21, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Peterson called the Monday, November 21, 2016 Regular Meeting of Dublin City 
Council to order at 6:30 p.m. in Council Chambers at Dublin City Hall. 

ROLL CALL 

Present were Mayor Peterson, Vice Mayor Reiner, Ms. Alutto, Mr. Keenan, and Mr. 
Lecklider. Ms. Salay arrived at 6:35 p.m. Ms. Amorose Groomes was absent (excused). 
travel. 

Staff members present were Mr. McDaniel, Ms. Crandall, Ms. Mumma, Ms. Readier, Ms. 
Goss, Ms. O'Callaghan, Mr. Rogers, Mr. McCollough, Mr. Foegler, Chief von Eckartsberg, 
Mr. Papsidero, Mr. Gaines, Mr. Hammersmith, Ms. Gilger, Ms. LeRoy, Ms. Richison, Ms. 
Kennedy, Ms. Burness, Ms. Shelley, Mr. Sylers and Mr. Plouck. 

ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mayor Peterson moved to adjourn to executive session for conferences with an attorney 
for the public body concerning disputes involving the public body that are the subject of 
pending or imminent court action and for discussion of the purchase of property for 
public purposes. 
Mr. Keenan seconded the motion. 
Vote on the motion: Vice Mayor Reiner, yes; Mr. Lecklider, yes; Mayor Peterson, yes; 
Mr. Keenan, yes; Ms. Alutto, yes. (Ms. Salay joined the executive session in progress.) 

The meeting was reconvened at 7:20 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Ms. Alutto led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

CIDZEN COMMENTS 

There were no comments from citizens regarding items not on the agenda. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Mr. Lecklider requested that Resolution 60-16 be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
scheduled under the regular portion of the agenda. 

Mayor Peterson moved approval of the remaining eight items on the Consent Agenda. 
Mr. Keenan seconded the motion. 
Vote on the motion: Ms. Salay, yes; Mr. Lecklider, yes; Vice Mayor Reiner, yes; Ms. 
Alutto, yes; Mayor Peterson, yes; Mr. Keenan, yes. 

• Approval of Minutes of Council meeting of 11-7-16

• Ordinance 51-16 (Introduction/first reading)
Amending Section 2 (Wage & Salary Structure/Administration) of Ordinance No. 73-
06 CCompensation Plan for Non-Union Personnel"). (Second reading/public hearing
December 5 Council meeting)

• Ordinance 52-16 (Introduction/first reading)
Appropriating a 0.078-Acre, More or Less, Permanent Easement from 495 Metro Place
LLC, Located on Metro Place South, for the Public Purpose of Constructing a Public
Shared-Use Path and Related Improvements. (Second reading/public hearing
December 5 Council meeting)

• Ordinance 53-16 (Introduction/first reading)
Appropriating a 0.180-acre, More or Less, Permanent Easement from Westpointe
Metro Lakes SPE, LLC, Located at 485 Metro Place South, for the Public Purpose of
Constructing a Public Shared-Use Path and Related Improvements. (Second
reading/public hearing December 5 Council meeting)

turnmv
Cross-Out



111 A as lop" 

Minutes of Dublin City Council
BARRETT BROTHERS - DAYTON, OHIO

Held
November 21, 2016 Page 2 of 11

Meeting
Form 6101

Resolution 59 -16 ( Introduction /public hearing /vote) 

Declaring Certain City -Owned Property as Surplus and Authorizing the City Manager
to Dispose of Said Property in Accordance with Section 37. 07 of the Dublin Codified
Ordinances. 

Acceptance of Final Plat - Ballantrae Woods

Acceptance of Final Plat - Bridge Park- Block H ( 16- 045PP /FP) 

Acceptance of Final Plat - Tartan West, Section 7

SECOND READING / PUBLIC HEARING — ORDINANCES

Ordinance 44 -16

Adopting the Annual Operating Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending December
31, 2017. 

Ms. Mumma stated that staff is requesting approval of the 2017 Operating Budget. The

budget workshop was held on November 9, and staff has provided a follow -up memo in
response to the questions from that meeting. 

Vote on the Ordinance: Ms. Salay, yes; Mr. Keenan, yes; Mr. Lecklider, yes; Mayor

Peterson, yes; Vice Mayor Reiner, yes; Ms. Alutto, yes. 

Ordinance 48 -16

Appropriating a 0.002 -Acre, More or Less, Temporary Easement for Two Years
from 72 High Company, LTD., Located along N. High Street, for the Public

Purpose of Widening N. High Street, 

Mr. McDaniel stated that this legislation relates to the widening of N. High Street through

downtown Dublin. This allows the City to obtain a temporary easement from 72 High
Company, Ltd. Staff continues to have discussions with the landowner and hopes to
reach an amicable resolution. If that does not occur, however, this legislation will allow

the Law Director to file a complaint for appropriation and utilize the quick take

procedures, if necessary. Staff recommends approval. 

Vote on the Ordinance: Mr. Keenan, yes; Ms. Alutto, yes; Mayor Peterson, yes; Vice

Mayor Reiner, yes; Ms. Salay, yes; Mr. Lecklider, yes. 

Ordinance 49 -16

Appropriating a 0.004 -Acre, More or Less, Fee Simple Interest; and a 0.032 - 

Acre Temporary Easement for Two Years from 84 High Company, LTD., 

Located along N. High Street, for the Public Purpose of Widening N. High

Street, 

Mr. McDaniel stated this legislation is similar to Ordinance 48 -16 and involves the same

process, should resolution not be reached. Staff recommends approval. 

Vote on the Ordinance: Ms. Salay, yes; Mr. Lecklider, yes; Vice Mayor Reiner, yes; 

Mayor Peterson, yes; Mr. Keenan, yes; Ms. Alutto, yes. 

Ordinance 50 -16

Amending the 2007 Dublin Community Plan to Incorporate the Shier Rings
Road Corridor Area Plan. 

Ms. Shelley stated that nothing has changed since the introduction /first reading. She

offered to respond to questions. 

Vote on the Ordinance: Mayor Peterson, yes; Ms. Alutto, yes; Mr. Lecklider, yes; Ms. 

Salay, yes; Vice Mayor Reiner, yes; Mr. Keenan, yes. 

INTRODUCTION/ FIRST READING — ORDINANCES

Ordinance 54 -16

Amending the Annual Appropriations Ordinance for the Fiscal Year Ending
December 31, 2016. 

Mr. Lecklider introduced the ordinance. 

turnmv
Cross-Out

turnmv
Cross-Out







Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 10, 2016 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 11 of 22 

 
Mr. Dugger said his contract expires in one week and they are currently trying to obtain an extension 

because he wants the full Commission to review this application. He said some issues were raised this 

evening that he does not know how to deal with on the spot. He said they are trying to reach the owner 
so an extension could be issued to address the issues appropriately.  

 
The Chair asked if it is possible to pause this review, move onto other cases, and reopen this case later 

this evening. Mr. Hartmann said that was fine if the applicant did not have an objection. Mr. Dugger said 
he did not object to a postponement to later in the evening. The Chair indicated this situation has not 

occurred before. Mr. Dugger apologized to the residents in attendance for delaying the proceedings. The 

Chair said she wanted to be fair to the applicant.  
 

Motion and Vote 
Ms. Newell moved, Ms. De Rosa seconded, to postpone the case until after the next case is reviewed. 

The vote was as follows: Ms. Mitchell, yes; Mr. Stidhem, yes; Ms. De Rosa, yes; and Ms. Newell, yes. 

(Approved 4 – 0) 
 

The Chair resumed the meeting for this case. 
 

Mr. Dugger reported the applicant has some additional time to work on the issues raised this evening but 

would need to get on the next regularly scheduled Commission meeting. The Chair said she thought the 
Commission could make an exception.  

 
Ms. Husak asked if the applicant would provide revised materials or if they will return with the same 

materials. Mr. Dugger said he did not know at this point and he probably would not have an answer until 
Monday. Ms. Husak said if the applicant is requesting to table the application that the 15-day rule would 

need to be waived.  

 
Mr. Dugger said Staff has been wonderful and the applicant will do everything they can to provide them 

with materials in an expedient manner. The Chair stated it is a tough application. Mr. Dugger officially 
requested that this application be tabled. 

 

Motion and Vote 
Ms. Newell moved, Ms. De Rosa seconded, to table the Final Development Plan at the request of the 

applicant and waive the 15-day rule to return to the next scheduled Commission meeting. The vote was 
as follows: Mr. Stidhem, yes; Ms. Mitchell, yes; Ms. De Rosa, yes; and Ms. Newell, yes. (Tabled 4 – 0) 

 
 

2. Ballantrae Woods PUD       Cosgray Road 

 15-119FDP/FP       Final Development Plan/Final Plat 
 

The Chair, Ms. Newell, said the following application is for a subdivision and development of 45 single-
family lots and 90 detached condominium units as part of the Ballantrae Woods Planned Unit 

Development. She said the site is east of Cosgray Road and north of the Conrail railroad tracks. She said 

this is a request for review and approval of Minor Modifications to the Development Text and a Final 
Development Plan under the provisions of Zoning Code Section 153.050 and request for review and 

recommendation of approval to City Council of a Final Plat under the provisions of the Subdivision 
Regulations. She noted the Commission will be required to vote on these requests separately. She said 

the Commission is the final authority on Minor Modifications to the Development Text and the Final 

Development Plan; anyone intending to address the Commission will need to be sworn-in. 
 

The Chair swore in anyone intending to address the Commission with regard to this case. 
 

rayfbh
Cross-Out



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 10, 2016 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 12 of 22 

Devayani Puranik stated the Final Development Plan is the final step of the approval process. She 

reported the Rezoning was approved September 8, 2015, and Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended approval to City Council July 9, 2015. She said the character of the area is rural residential 
with limited commercial activity and presented an aerial view of the site. She noted the northern sections 

have wooded areas and there are tree rows along the railroad tracks.  

Ms. Puranik said the Final Development Plan layout and density is consistent with the Preliminary 
Development Plan with 45 single-family lots, 90 detached condominium units, and the open space is 18.2 

acres with an overall density of 2.72 units per acre. She said no major updates have been made 

regarding the site layout.  

Ms. Puranik said the site is immediately west of Churchman Road with three access points, two of which 
will align with streets to the east. She said the private drives provide access to the condominium units 

and public roads will serve the single-family lots. She said the best buffer is 100 feet from the CXS 

railroad tracks with mounds and landscaping to the height of ±6 – 8 feet continuously from north to 
south. She said the buildings will be 25 feet from the property line and will be buffered by landscaping 

along the southern property line. She said the open space is mainly along the buffer setback with a half-
acre of open space within the condominium development. She said connectivity is continuous throughout 

this site with sidewalks and shared-use paths.  

Ms. Puranik said the proposed architecture for the condominiums has eight different elevations, seven of 

which were part of the Preliminary Development Plan. She explained it is a cottage theme that includes 
high pitched roofs, dormers, and detailed window trim. She said all units are required to have four-sided 

architecture and permit the same primary building materials as the single-family residential units. She 
said design elements include a door that is at least 17 square feet in area, windows with minimum 

requirements for trim, chimneys, decorative gable vents, porches, or other appropriate design features 

for the approved architecture. She noted the applicant has added an eighth elevation that has a 
prominent wall of glass not consistent with the architectural theme and Development Text. She said Staff 

has recommended that this elevation be modified to better integrate with the required architectural 
theme. She added Staff is concerned that the architectural detailing on some side elevations is lacking. 

She explained that while the units will be 12 feet apart, there are large blank walls shown on the 

submitted elevations.  

Victoria Newell asked which elevation was added. Ms. Puranik pointed out the elevation and presented 
the conceptual architecture proposed. Ms. Puranik explained because the applicant is introducing this 

elevation, they are also proposing additional design elements to include in the Development Text. She 
presented all the elements in addition to what has been previously approved. She presented the 

architectural drawings and noted the two new design elements proposed that they are proposing and to 

add the descriptions to the Development Text. She noted currently the text requires single-hung windows 
with a grid pattern of either 4/4, 6/6, or 9/9; they are requesting the modification for a fixed window 

pane with a minimum of 2 grids creating a minimum of 3 faux lights. She said the additional dormer 
styles include one windowed dormer and two dormers with dot motifs (one roof dormer and one porch 

dormer). She reported Staff is concerned that the large window addition and the two closed dormers do 

not successfully integrate into the architectural theme of “Carpenter Gothic”. She said the other proposed 
window modification provides consistency between approved design elements and the Development Text 

while providing flexibility for additional design elements for windows and allows the residential units to 
have natural light in smaller areas of the home. She said Staff supports the minor text modification to 

permit the additional window and dormer styles except the large 9-square window and dot-motif 

dormers.  

Ms. Puranik said Staff recommends approval of a Final Development Plan with five conditions: 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 10, 2016 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 13 of 22 

 
1) That the applicant work with Staff to modify elevation C-8 of the condominium units for 

consistency with the architectural theme and meet the requirement of building materials 

permitted by the approved Development Text; 
 

2) That the applicant modify the side elevations for the condominium units to introduce additional 
design elements to avoid large blank surfaces and achieve four-sided architecture; 

 
3) That the applicant enter into an infrastructure agreement with the City of Dublin to address the 

fee to be paid for off-site traffic impacts, prior to the Recommendation of the Final Development 

Plan recording of a plat for any portion of the site, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer; 
 

4) That the applicant resolves discrepancies between the Summary Table, Final Plat, and 
Development Text for open space reserves and area numbers prior to City Council review for 

Final Plat; and 

 
5) That the applicant work with Staff in all areas that require disturbances in the reserve areas to 

locate the amenities in the least impactful manner. 
 

Ms. Puranik presented the Final Plat that shows all the required setbacks, right-of-ways, and lots, but said 

the applicant needs to show continuous building lines and include “Reserve R” that was part of the 
Preliminary Development Plan that includes the preservation of landmark trees.  

 
Ms. Puranik said approval is recommended for a Final Plat with two conditions: 

 
1) That the applicant ensure that any minor technical adjustments to the plat, are made prior to City 

Council submittal; and 

 
2) That the applicant revises the plat and summary table to include “Reserve R” for landmark tree 

protection and reserve area numbers and ownership details per approved Development Text. 
 

Ms. Newell asked if vinyl windows were in the original Development Text to which Ms. Puranik confirmed.  

 
The Chair invited the applicant to approach the Commission. 

 
Scott McClintock, Kass Corporation, 6210 Taylor Road SW, Pataskala, Ohio 43062, said many of the items 

have been addressed. He said each of the conditions on the Final Development Plan and Final Plat can be 
addressed. He said he believes there are some solutions to the large bank of windows on the Hanover 

elevation. He said an agreement has been created in principle with Engineering and Development; just 

the paperwork is needed for final process. He concluded he has no issues with the conditions.  
 

Ms. Newell asked why the additional style elevation was proposed. Mr. McClintock said there were 
footprint items this design worked better for, bringing an entertainment type room to the front and 

opening a central area allows for a patio space to be centrally located. He explained each of the other 

layouts have the patio space utilizing the back of the structure.  
 

Ms. Newell asked if there was a specific location for each of the design styles planned for the site to 
provide a variety. Mr. McClintock said that would be driven by sales. He said the overall plan contains a 

footprint each of the buildings will fit into.  

 
Cathy De Rosa asked for clarification on the second condition on the Plat about Reserve R for the 

landmark tree.  
 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 10, 2016 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 14 of 22 

Ms. Puranik presented the Site Plan and noted the two landmark trees that are part of the reserve, which 

was not reflected on the Plat.  

Steve Stidhem confirmed there were three new window types proposed that Staff did not want added to 

the Development Text. Ms. Puranik explained the windows now become a primary material and that was 
not listed in the Preliminary Development Plan and do not match the size and style of others.  

The Chair invited the public to speak with regards to this case. [Hearing none.]  She opened the meeting 

up to discussion for the Commissioners.  

Ms. Newell said she agreed with Staff in regards to the ninth elevation as it stands out differently from 

the others. She said that elevation is missing the arched windows typical for this style but overall she 
likes the design of the structures. She reiterated that architectural elements that appear so well in 

drawings need to be brought to the reality of the final built product. She said she was fine with the minor 

development text change.  

Mr. Stidhem said he liked the layout and design. He asked what the square footage was for each of the 
units.  

David Parsley, Vice President of Sales, said all three units range between 1,900 – 2,100 square feet 
without the optional second floor. He said the applicant will not allow the same units to be built next to 

each other.  

Ms. Newell requested that be made a condition. Deborah Mitchell suggested it be written in the design 
matrix requirements. Ms. Newell emphasized it should be written in some fashion beyond what is in the 

text currently.  

Ms. Puranik said a diversity matrix was submitted with the application at one point and Staff will request 

it again.  

Ms. Mitchell said her main concern was the variability; she liked the architecture. She said if the reality 

looks like the renderings, the development will look great.  

Mr. Parsley clarified there are four different units so a full matrix could not be used but would ensure the 
same elevation would not be built side-by-side.  

Ms. Newell said she did not want to see a unit used throughout, heavy handed because it was popular. 

Claudia Husak said a matrix could be worked out. Ms. Puranik said she added the sixth condition. 

The Chair asked the applicant if they were in agreement with all six conditions for the Final Development 

Plan. Mr. McClintock answered he accepted each of the conditions and wanted to make sure the sixth one 
was to be worked out with Staff and a full matrix was not expected. 

Ms. De Rosa concluded she loved the way the plan looks; specifically the green space and flow. 

Motion and Vote 
Ms. Newell moved, Mr. Stidhem seconded, to approve the Minor Text Modification. The vote was as 

follows: Ms. Mitchell, yes; Ms. De Rosa, yes; Mr. Stidhem, yes; and Ms. Newell, yes. (Approved 4 – 0) 

Motion and Vote 

Ms. Newell moved, Ms. Mitchell seconded, to approve the Final Development Plan with six conditions as 
presented: 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 10, 2016 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 15 of 22 

1) That the applicant work with Staff to modify elevation C-8 of the condominium units for

consistency with the architectural theme and meet the requirement of building materials

permitted by the approved Development Text;

2) That the applicant modify the side elevations for the condominium units to introduce additional
design elements to avoid large blank surfaces and achieve four-sided architecture;

3) That the applicant enter into an infrastructure agreement with the City of Dublin to address the

fee to be paid for off-site traffic impacts, prior to the Recommendation of the Final Development

Plan recording of a plat for any portion of the site, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer;

4) That the applicant resolves discrepancies between the Summary Table, Final Plat, and
Development Text for open space reserves and area numbers prior to City Council review for

Final Plat;

5) That the applicant work with Staff in all areas that require disturbances in the reserve areas to

locate the amenities in the least impactful manner; and

6) That the applicant provides a diversity matrix for the condominium subarea.

The vote was as follows: Mr. Stidhem, yes; Ms. De Rosa, yes; Ms. Mitchell, yes; and Ms. Newell, yes. 

(Approved 4 – 0) 

Motion and Vote 
Ms. Newell moved, Ms. Mitchell seconded, to recommend approval to City Council for a Final Plat with 

two conditions: 

1) That the applicant ensure that any minor technical adjustments to the plat, are made prior to City

Council submittal; and

2) That the applicant revises the plat and summary table to include “Reserve R” for landmark tree

protection and reserve area numbers and ownership details per approved Development Text.

Mr. McClintock agreed to the two conditions. 

The vote was as follows: Ms. De Rosa, yes; Mr. Stidhem, yes; Ms. Mitchell, and Ms. Newell, yes. 
(Approved 4 – 0) 

3. Deer Run, Subarea A  5000 Deer Run Drive 

15-120FDP/PP/FP  Final Development Plan/Preliminary and Final Plat 

This application was postponed prior to the meeting at the request of the applicant. 

4. NE Quad PUD, Subarea 2, Wyandotte Woods, Section 9 (Lots 203-216, Lots 236 and
237, and Lots 250-257) and Section 10 (Lots 217-235, and Lots 238-249)

 Wyandotte Woods Boulevard 

15-108FDP/FP   Final Development Plan/Final Plat 

The Chair, Ms. Newell, said the following application is for the subdivision and development of 55 single-
family lots as part of the Wyandotte Woods neighborhood in Subarea 2 of the NE Quad Planned Unit 

Development. She said the site is north of the eastern portion of Wyandotte Woods Boulevard, south and 

rayfbh
Cross-Out



















Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
July 9, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 19 

 

Chair Newell said there were three cases eligible for the consent agenda this evening (Case 1, 2, and 3). 
She said they will take the cases in the order of Case 3, 2, 1 and 4. She briefly explained the rules and 

procedures of the Planning and Zoning Commission. [The minutes will reflect the published order.] 
 

 

1. Ballantrae Woods                                                  Cosgray Road  
 15-004Z/PDP/PP                     Rezoning/Preliminary Development Plan 

Preliminary Plat     
Ms. Newell said the following application is a request to rezone 49.6 acres from R, Rural District and PLR, 

Planned Low Density Residential District (Ballantrae, Subarea S) to PUD, Planned Unit Development 
District for the potential development of the site with up to 135 units and approximately 18 acres of open 

space. She said the site is located east of Cosgray Road and north of the Conrail railroad tracks and the 

application is a request for review and recommendation of approval to City Council of a Rezoning with a 
Preliminary Development Plan under the provisions of Zoning Code Section 153.050 and review and 

recommendation of approval to City Council of a Preliminary Plat under the provisions of Subdivision 
Regulations. She said the Commission will therefore need to make two motions. 

 

Devayani Puranik said there was a copy of correspondence that was received from one of the neighbors 
distributed tonight on a green paper. She gave a quick update from the last review. She said the last 

review was on May 21st where the application was tabled. She said that Final Development and Final Plat 
will be the last step of the PUD rezoning process following this review. 

 
Ms. Puranik said the parcels north of Rings Road are located within Washington Township (Amlin) and to 

the east of the site is Ballantrae development (Woodlands and Links). She said Churchman Road is a 

connector between Cosgray and Rings Road which is the eastern boundary of the site.  
 

Ms. Puranik said the development text has been updated and reorganized with added details. She said 
many of the conditions are now resolved through the new development text including the Commissioner 

comments such as architectural elements, details, and materials. She added that the applicant has also 

provided illustrative examples of the details within the text. She said the Preliminary Development Plan 
and Plat have been updated to include the open space, maintenance responsibilities, setbacks and 

reserves information. She added that the tree survey is also updated to reflect the changes from the 
Churchman Road right-of-way project. She said the traffic study has been updated and the applicant is 

working with staff to address some of the additional comments received from the Franklin County 

Engineers office. 
 

Ms. Puranik said there are no major updates regarding the Site Plan since the last review. She explained 
that the site is approximately 49 acres with the northern portion of the site proposed for 45 fee simple 

single family homes and the southern portion for 90 detached condominium units served by private 
drives. She said they are providing about 18 acres of open space out of which 11 acres will be dedicated 

to the City when they are required to provide approximately 8.4 acres. 

 
Ms. Puranik said the comments from the last review focused on the architecture of the single family 

homes where the Commission wanted to see more details and materials and the revised development 
text includes those details. She added that the illustrative examples include details and elements of 

traditional architecture such as brackets, gable details, garage details, and the façade renderings show a 

lot of those details such as stone and planter boxes reflected as well. She said the text provides a 
list/menu of the details that will be handed to potential buyers with all the options for the windows, 

doors, stoops, porches, gables, and garages that they will be able to choose. 
 

Ms. Puranik said there are no major updates regarding the architecture of the condominium units with it 
being the carpenter gothic farmhouse character which was appreciated during the last review. She added 

that the details are included in a similar list of details within the development text.  

rayfbh
Cross-Out



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
July 9, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 19 

Paul Coppel, Schottenstein Homes, said the only remaining issues were the architectural details for the 

single family homes. He said that their updated text clearly includes all of the items that were illustrated 
on the drawings.  

 
Ms. Puranik said based on the analysis the proposal meets the review criteria with nine conditions: 

 

1) That the proximity to active railroad tracks is clearly stated in writing during the sales process 
and the options to install windows and exterior walls with higher STC levels than provided are 

explored for sound abatement prior to the final development plan; 
2) That the two landmark trees between unit 78 and unit 79 within Subarea B are incorporated 

within appropriate open space reserve and maintenance responsibilities by appropriate home 
owners association; 

3) That the traffic study is finalized to address additional staff and Franklin County Engineer’s 

concerns prior to the City Council hearing; 
4) That the infrastructure improvements and financial contributions to off-site improvements will be 

made based on the final traffic study and incorporated into the final development plan or a 
separate infrastructure agreement, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer; 

5) That the proposed sidewalk connection to Cramer Street next to unit 82 is coordinated with the 

Franklin County Engineer’s Office; 
6) That the proposed mounding near the intersection of Cosgray Road and Churchman Road is 

modified to accommodate intersection sight visibility for the northern most site intersection; 
7) That the windows with grids detail is incorporated within the development text; 

8) That the decks are not permitted as an outdoor amenity for Subarea B; and 
9) That the construction plans, right-of-way dedication, and responsibility for Phase 2 and 3 of the 

Churchman Road project is finalized for the final development plan. 

 
Ms. Puranik said the Plat now reflects all the setbacks, reserves and all the information that was missing 

before including a maintenance table. She said the application meets all the review criteria. She 
concluded by recommending approval for the Preliminary Plat with one condition: 

 

1)  That any minor technical adjustments to the plat are made prior to the City Council submittal. 
 

Mr. Miller asked about the treatment between the alley and the property line. 
 

Ms. Puranik said a fence was proposed in the first proposal which is now replaced with a landscape wall 

and the design will be finalized with the Final Development Plan. 
 

Ms. Newell asked for public comment.  
 

David Patch said he lives in One Miranova in Columbus, Ohio, but owns two lots and houses in Amlin. He 
mentioned that his mother lives at the corner of Churchman and Rings Road. He said he likes Amlin 

character and has only seen the revised plans for the proposed development that day and talked with 

staff and the applicant. He said that some of the issues are addressed but he has not seen any additional 
details. He added that the proposed development character looks beautiful. He said he owns two of the 

lots where units 75 or 76 are within the proposed development and has an interest in the property.  
 

Mr. Brown said he read the letter that Mr. Patch sent and most of the concerns were addressed and he 

hoped he would be pleased with the revisions. 
 

Ms. Newell said the architecture has changed especially for the single family residences with submission. 
She asked if these are the actual designs of the front of the buildings as shown on the new 

representations and pictures in the text. 
 

Mr. Coppel clarified that the development text requires the incorporation of the design elements as 

illustrated. 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
July 9, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 19 

Ms. Newell said the only comment she has is about the window placement on elevation F1 and the 

placement, windows, detailing, and structure over the garage, which can be improved, but thought the 
building elevations have improved overall. 

 
Ms. De Rosa agreed with the improvements and appreciated the harmonious blending with the 

condominium architecture with improvements. 

 
Ms. Newell said she likes the simplification of materials such as siding and stone on the collection of 

buildings which 
 

Ms. Newell said this is a consent case and asked the applicant if they agreed to the following nine 
conditions: 

1) That the proximity to active railroad tracks is clearly stated in writing during the sales process 

and the options to install windows and exterior walls with higher STC levels than provided are 
explored for sound abatement prior to the final development plan; 

2) That the two landmark trees between unit 78 and unit 79 within Subarea B are incorporated 
within appropriate open space reserve and maintenance responsibilities by appropriate home 

owners association; 

3) That the traffic study is finalized to address additional staff and Franklin County Engineer’s 
concerns prior to the City Council hearing; 

4) That the infrastructure improvements and financial contributions to off-site improvements will be 
made based on the final traffic study and incorporated into the final development plan or a 

separate infrastructure agreement, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer; 
5) That the proposed sidewalk connection to Cramer Street next to unit 82 is coordinated with the 

Franklin County Engineer’s Office; 

6) That the proposed mounding near the intersection of Cosgray Road and Churchman Road is 
modified to accommodate intersection sight visibility for the northern most site intersection; 

7) That the windows with grids detail is incorporated within the development text; 
8) That the decks are not permitted as an outdoor amenity for Subarea B; and 

9) That the construction plans, right-of-way dedication, and responsibility for Phase 2 and 3 of the 

Churchman Road project is finalized for the final development plan. 
 

Paul Coppel, Schottenstein Homes, agreed. 
 

Motion and Vote 

Ms. Newell moved, Mr. Brown seconded, to recommend approval to City Council for this rezoning with a 
Preliminary Development Plan application, with nine conditions. The vote was as follows: Ms. Salay, yes; 

Ms. De Rosa, yes; Mr. Miller, yes; Mr. Brown, yes; and Ms. Newell, yes. (Approved 5 – 0)  
 

Ms. Newell said the Preliminary Plat has one condition and asked if there is agreement to the condition: 
1) That the applicant ensures that any minor technical adjustments to the plat are made prior to the 

City Council submittal. 

 
Paul Coppel, Schottenstein Homes, agreed. 

 
Motion and Vote 

Ms. Newell moved, Mr. Brown seconded, to recommend approval to City Council for this Preliminary Plat 

with one condition. The vote was as follows: Ms. Salay, yes; Mr. Brown, yes; Mr. Miller, yes; Ms. De Rosa, 
yes; and Ms. Newell, yes. (Approved 5 – 0) 

 
 

 
 

 

 





Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
May 21, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 17 of 23 

 
Mr. Stidhem inquired about a barrier or fencing between this and the housing on the behalf of the 

residents. Mr. Hunter responded there are no plans for a fence. 

 
Mr. Schottenstein said the entry feature has not been designed yet and promised to work with the 

neighbors. He said they are considering a community garden, also where the residents can plant their 
own vegetables on individual plots.  

 
For another resident, Mr. Stidhem asked what stage is this designed because it appears to have been 

presented to the residents as a final design and it is clearly not the case.  

 
Mr. Hunter confirmed this is a Concept Plan. 

 
Mr. Brown said the Commission is representing the residents but at the same time, it is an opportunity to 

create a nice buffer between you and what Hyland-Croy Road is going to be. He encouraged the 

residents to keep an open mind and work with the developers. He encouraged the developers to work 
with the residents particularly on the entrance and what it means to their neighborhood; it is not just 

their backyard, this is the entry because of the situation with ODOT. 
 

Ms. Salay encouraged the developers to be sensitive to the neighbors considering your own home and 

what you would want to live next to.  
 

The Chair called for a five minute recess. 
 

 
3. Ballantrae Woods         Cosgray Road 

 15-004Z/PDP/PP            Rezoning/Preliminary Development Plan/Preliminary Plat 

       
The Chair, Ms. Newell, said the following application is a request for review and recommendation of 

approval to City Council for a rezoning to a Planned Unit Development District for a single-family 
residential development on a 49-acre site, east of Cosgray Road and north of the Conrail railroad tracks. 

She said this is also a request for review and recommendation of approval to City Council for a 

Preliminary Plat for the lots, reserves, and rights-of-way. 
 

Devayani Puranik presented the site and said this development has been reviewed several times. She 
noted a Cosgray Rings Road connector is proposed along eastern property line - Churchman Road. She 

said east of Churchman Road is the Links at Ballantrae, a multi-family development and further east is 
the Woodlands at Ballantrae. She said parcels along southwest corner of the property are within 

Washington Township in the Village of Amlin, which is outside of the Dublin corporate boundary. She 

described the character of this area as village residential with limited commercial activity along Rings 
Road where a pizza shop is located. She said the existing tree cover is present within the northern 

section and mature tree rows are present along the railroad tracks. 
 

Ms. Puranik stated this case was presented informally to the PZC on September 18, 2014. She said the 

Concept Plan was presented on April 2, 2015. She said today’s stage is the first formal stage to establish 
a Planned Unit Development. She said depending on the Commission action this evening, it could move 

forward to City Council for final approval.  
 

Ms. Puranik explained there are two zoning classifications for this site. She said the northern portion of 

the property is zoned PLR-Planned Low Density Residential and the southern portion of the site is zoned 
R-Rural. 

 
Ms. Puranik presented the Future Land Use/Southwest Area Plan maps. She said the Community Plan 

recommends “Mixed residential- Medium Density” for this site, which is meant for walkable, pedestrian 

rayfbh
Cross-Out



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
May 21, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 18 of 23 

 
oriented, village scale development up to 5 units per acre for density. She said this site is also part of the 

Southwest Special Area Plan, which recommends preserving Amlin’s quaint character as adjacent 

development occurs. She noted future residential development should provide adequate separation with 
open space to visually define a clear transition between traditional neighborhood design and surrounding 

area. She said the plan provided recommendations for preserving the natural features and integrating 
woodlots and fencerows in the design. She said the plan also recommends establishing a roadway 

network that preserves existing character and regional and local connectivity should be maintained. 
 

Ms. Puranik presented the Concept Plan presented at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting in 

April, 2015. She noted the total acreage for the site is 51 acres; out of which 4.6 acres are for 
Churchman Road right-of-way. She said the Commission suggested a buffer and consistent setbacks. She 

said the comments also focused on the architecture requesting more detail. 
 

Ms. Puranik said the applicant is proposing a combination of single-family and detached condominium 

development for this site. She pointed out the northern section: Subarea A, which consists of 23.1 acres 
for 45 fee-simple single-family lots and Subarea B is 24.3 acres for 90 detached condominium lots within 

the southern section. She said the proposed density is less than presented in April. She said the density is 
now 2.72 units per acre and the approximate open space is 18.1 acres. She said Subarea C is the right-

of-way for Churchman Road, south of Marmion Drive. She said the family homes will be served by a 

public street and the condominiums will be served by private drives. She said a 100-foot buffer is 
proposed from Churchman Road. She pointed out the main stormwater retention pond. She said the 

existing wood lots around the northern portion of the site will be preserved. 
 

Ms. Puranik presented the main revisions from the April 2nd plan including the revisions for Lots 43 and 
44, single-family road alignment, and tree preservation. She said there are now consistent setbacks from 

Cosgray Road and Churchman Road. She said a condominium unit was removed to preserve two 

landmark trees.  
 

Ms. Puranik presented the Open Space Plan and noted the sidewalk connectivity and bike path 
connections. She said the applicant is proposing three different homeowner associations: Subarea A 

(HOA), Subarea B (COA), and Master’s Owners Association (MOA). She pointed out that the street 

frontage area is to be owned and maintained by the MOA, the blue area is the City’s responsibility that 
includes the stormwater pond as well as the railroad track buffer, and the center half acre is the 

condominium green to be maintained by COA. She said the private drives within the condominium 
subarea are also to be maintained by the COA.  

 
Ms. Puranik presented the conceptual Landscape Plan with details to be finalized with the Final 

Development Plan.  

 
Ms. Puranik presented the architecture for the single-family, fee-simple homes in three different styles: 

Traditional, Craftsman, and Victorian. She said the primary materials proposed are cementitious siding, 
and secondary materials are stone/brick. She noted three-car garages will be included in some of the 

elevations.  

 
Ms. Puranik presented the proposed architecture for the condominiums, which is Carpenter Gothic – 

Farmhouse character. She described the front elevations with gable accents, porches, brackets, etc. 
which include several details. She said all condominium units will have two-car garages. She said the 

primary material is cementitious siding but it is white and used in different forms and textures.  

 
Linda Menerey, EMH&T, introduced the project team. She explained they are down three units overall, 

the density is down a bit, and the open space up. She said they heard the last time that the proximity to 
Cosgray Road was an issue and where they made the biggest change. She said they eliminated the mid-



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
May 21, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 19 of 23 

 
block crossing. She said a lot of details need to be worked out with the bikeway plan. She indicated they 

created a more green buffer by Amlin.  

 
Ms. Menerey said through this process they have received a lot of feedback. She said the architecture 

section now contains a diversity matrix. She said there are still 14 conditions, 11 of which are pretty 
simple but wish to discuss three or four of those left.  

 
The Chair invited public comment. 

 

Mike Wallen, 5016 Foxtail Drive, Hilliard, Ohio, said he is the administrator for Northwest Chapel and 
owns property that borders this proposal. He requested more trees and bushes along Amlin as it is an 

alleyway. 
 

Ms. Puranik went over the 16 criteria for the Rezoning/Preliminary Development Plan Review. She said 

the first 9 are either met or met with condition, #10 is about private drives and have been a concern of 
the Commission specifically about the financial burden on residents for maintenance. She said 11 and 12 

are met but #13 is Design and Appearance, which have not been met: single-family architecture; 
materials for both products; and the third car garage exceeds the width for frontage. She said the 

applicant has provided three options for three-car garages that fit the lot but does not fall within the 

restricted 45% requirement. She said criteria 14 – 16 are met. She explained that Staff believes that 
criteria 10 and 13 are very important to the review of this application. Staff will continue to work with the 

applicant to resolve those issues, but at this point Planning is recommending disapproval of the case. 
 

Ms. Puranik said the Preliminary Plat meets criteria so approval is recommended but it is related to the 
Development Plan.  

 

Ms. Puranik presented the 14 possible conditions: 
 

1) That the proximity to active railroad tracks is clearly stated in writing during the sales process 
and the options to install windows and exterior walls with higher STC levels for sound abatement 

are explored prior to the Final Development Plan; 

 
2) That the applicant works with Staff to identify the appropriate combination of the plant material 

and landscaping elements for Amlin and railroad buffer; 
 

3) That the applicant works with the Staff to finalize the access points through the woods and the 
shared-use path alignment by taking updated right-of-way lines for Cosgray Road roundabout 

and Churchman Road into considerations; 

 
4) That the applicant works with the Staff to finalize the appropriate dimension of the protection 

zone and fence details to protect the landmark trees’ critical root zone during construction; 
 

5) That the tree survey and replacement plan is updated to reflect the changes due to Churchman 

Road construction for the Final Development Plan; 
 

6) That the traffic impact study is updated to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to a City 
Council hearing of the rezoning to address the comments listed by the City Engineer; 

 

7) That the applicant differentiates the private drives visually by using different street sign colors or 
other appropriate means as permitted by Engineering; 

 
8) That the applicant works with Staff to finalize locations for additional visitor parking in Subarea B; 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
May 21, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 20 of 23 

 
9) That the applicant provides a vehicular connection between Inchcape Lane and Eva Loop to 

improve connectivity;  

 
10) That the two fee-simple, single-family lots (#44 and #45) south of Ballantrae Woods Drive 

adjacent to the detached condominiums are replaced with the detached condominiums for 
consistent setback and streetscape at the main entry point to the development; 

 
11) That the setback deviations for all lots and screening details for outdoor amenities, are clarified in 

the development text in the appropriate section for each Subarea; 

 
12) That Subarea A architecture and Design Matrix be revised to show a dominant masonry front 

façade for all homes, and that these details and accents illustrated on the conceptual elevations 
for single family homes and detached condominiums are clearly reflected in the architectural 

design guidelines; 

 
13) That the three-car garage percentage in Subarea A is limited to 45% per the Appearance 

Standards as opposed to 50% per the development text; and 
 

14) That the applicant work with the Staff to finalize the construction plans, right-of-way dedication, 

and responsibilities for Phase 2 and 3 of the Churchman Road project. 
 

Chris Brown inquired about the three-car garage percentage. Ms. Puranik confirmed the calculation was 
based on the percentage of the front elevation. 

 
The Chair asked the applicant if they wanted to do the presentation on the architecture. 

 

Paul Coppel, co-owner of Schottenstein Homes asked to respond to the 14 conditions and the three 
reasons for Planning’s recommendation of disapproval and part of that will include a full presentation of 

the architecture. He said the first big issue had to do with the private drives in the condominium section. 
He said he does not know of any condominium project that has public streets. He explained their whole 

concept in that area is to have the yards, buildings, and roofs maintained by the condominium owner’s 

association. He said the drives will be built to Dublin standards and the association will be fully funded. 
He said they have prepared a full maintenance budget for the drives as well as replacements to establish 

proper reserves. He stated they are fine with conditions 1 through 8 and 9 is the vehicular connection. He 
said they have completed a concept to do that but believe what they have proposed is better. He said 

with his plan, the units are siding to the railroad area and the only way to connect would be to have the 
units front on the railroad area and believe that is an inferior plan. He addressed condition 10 and said 

they could return those to two condominium units. He said conditions 11 and 14 are fine. He said George 

Acock will address conditions 12 and 13.  
 

George Acock said in order for these condominiums to be a success, they all needed to have the same 
materials, details, and a consistency of quality throughout the whole condominium development. He said 

this was important unlike the single-family homes where the residents will want the homes custom built 

to their preferences. He said there will be a lot of options available to make the homes unique and 
individualized. He explained continuity of architecture will be seen with the condominiums by using a 

Carpenter-Gothic style, which came about with the scroll saw. He said this saw easily mass-produced 
interesting architectural details in the 1800s. He indicated this can all be replicated today on the 

computer generated machines to keep the cost down. He said the applicant raised the first floor of each 

of the units about 18 inches so the stone base can be emphasized and they ended up with a very 
delightful cottage look. He added with all this detail, the eye does not go directly to the garage and 

softens the scale and emphasizes the other elements. He noted for the single-family garages, they have 
exceeded the garage requirement by three feet, which equates to 48% instead of 45% but the driveway 

does not relate to the third car garage as those are set back and with proper landscaping, that third 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
May 21, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 21 of 23 

 
garage will not be noticeable in a couple of years. He said they have included the third garage because 

they found it is in demand in today’s market. He indicated it is an important element to have for 

additional storage.  
 

Mr. Coppel said the remaining issue on the single-family units was the predominance of stone. He 
explained the applicant is going to offer stone options on all of those homes but in a style a little 

differently than the neighboring communities. He indicated the applicant may have caused confusion with 
staff by listing cementitious siding as the predominant material but they are amenable to amending that 

statement to say “and/or stone”. He said they are going to allow the market to dictate it.  

 
Mr. Acock said from an architectural standpoint what is important is that the stone is used for protruding 

elements that would make a nice statement to the street. He indicated it would be great to have an all-
stone house but people are not going to pay that much money. 

 

Cathy De Rosa requested the price points for the condominiums.  
 

Mr. Coppel responded they anticipate three different condominium sizes: the smallest starting slightly 
under $300,000; the middle size being $325,000; and the largest with all options will be offered at 

$375,000. He said the single-family homes will be low $300,000 and average around $400,000. 

 
Amy Salay inquired about the size of the homes.  

 
Mr. Coppel said the smallest home size is 2,200 square feet and the largest is around 3,100 square feet 

or possibly up to 3,500 square feet. 
 

The Chair invited public comment since she had allowed the applicant to speak again. [Hearing none.] 

Chris Brown said the Commission can get hung up on brick and stone. He said Carpenter-Gothic is one of 
his favorite styles of all times. He said he is slightly refreshed from what he normally sees in Dublin; it is 

a nice change of pace. He indicated it would make a very quaint condominium community and would like 
to see it carried through to the single-family side. He stated he is not opposed to cementitious siding as a 

material and not opposed to the percentages; he likes the stone foundations. He said he understands the 

market demand for three-car garages. He said it is important that it be balanced with the entire façade of 
the house. He said it should not appear as the main presentation on the façade. He said three-car 

garages in Dublin are hard to come by. He said he can be supportive if it is tucked back and treated in an 
appropriate manner.  

 
Mr. Brown addressed condition 9; he said that connection is not crucial. He said for condition 10, he 

believes it is more appropriate to have Lots 44 & 45 be part of the single-family homes and not the 

condominiums and then Lots 43 and 42 balance off with Lot 44. Overall, he said the conditions staff 
recommends do not really strike him as deal breakers at all. He concluded he loves the architecture that 

is a nice change of pace from the typical development.  
 

Ms. De Rosa stated she also very much liked the architecture of the condominiums. However, she said 

she did not quite feel the same about the single-family homes. She requested more prescribed brickwork 
or percentages of brick. She said she likes the continuity of the condominiums but would like to see the 

single-family illustrations with brick. She indicated richness is missed on the single-family homes and the 
absence of detail will make if feel more monotonous than quaint. She said she likes the latest version of 

Lots 44 & 45. She said she likes the change made on the first few parts of the lot; it is a nice 

improvement. She said she did not understand where the parking is for the condominiums. 
 

Ms. Menerey said on the old plan, they showed parallel spaces on streets; Staff asked them to remove 
those but she will work through that at the Final Development Plan. 

 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
May 21, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 22 of 23 

 
Ms. De Rosa said she did not feel strongly either way about the connector. 

 

Mr. Brown said he agrees with Ms. De Rosa. He indicated the single-family architecture does not stand 
out as much as the condominiums. He said some improvements can be done using the proper 

proportions. He said sometimes gables get lost in elevations as opposed to renderings and he would like 
to see more of the intent in the final plan. 

 
Bob Miller stated he was in total agreement with Mr. Brown and Ms. De Rosa. 

 

Ms. Salay said she was in agreement as well. She said she would like to see more stone on the single-
family homes; she does not like the all siding all the time look. She indicated she loved the architecture 

for the condominiums. She inquired about the detail and thought it would require a lot of painting and 
upkeep over the years. She asked if that will be the responsibility of the HOA.  

 

Victoria Newell responded that it would occur about every ten years. 
 

Ms. Salay noted the window boxes on a couple of these and no landscaping but if the stone foundation 
can be seen in some places that would be important. She said she loved the detailing of the plant 

material in the window boxes but does not know how you make that happen because somebody will 

need to water the plants. She concluded the details improved this proposal. 
 

Steve Stidhem concurred; he really liked the window boxes with flowers. He said he visited the area and 
asked if Cosgray Road could be connected to Rings Road as an option.  

 
Tina Wawszkiewicz answered that is a public Franklin County right-of-way and not incorporated into the 

City of Dublin. She explained that at the time the applicant annexed the piece of land adjacent to that, 

they asked if there would be vehicular connectivity and indicated that would not be their preference.  
 

Mr. Stidhem asked for clarification on who made that statement. Ms. Wawszkiewicz said Franklin County 
Engineers Office. 

 

Mr. Stidhem said he agreed with 46 and 45. He said the biggest issue was the train sound. He 
emphasized some sound proofing into the buildings and suggested clear communication for the 

prospective buyers.  
 

Ms. Newell said she really liked the architecture of the condominiums in the design sketches presented. 
As an architect, she said there are some really great looking details and scroll work and does not want to 

see that get lost when it gets constructed. She said the text is not really protecting is currently. She 

inquired about how some of those features were actually going to be constructed on the elevations. She 
said she likes buildings when they can be constructed all in one material and is not against cementitious 

siding. After reviewing the text and the illustrations, she said she was left with the impression that the 
single-family homes would be predominantly siding, also. She indicated she would be fine  if developed 

with the same character, if that is what the applicant is going to stick with. She suggested other elements 

to be offered besides cementitious siding and stone. She said the designs need to go further and text 
needs to reflect that as well. She said she is fine with the locations of the single-family Lots 44 & 45; it 

makes a much nicer entry and makes this feel more like a community. Unless there is an issue with fire 
access or engineering, she said the connection is not better for the residents. She said it would take away 

buffer space. She stated she liked the improvement at the other entry drive. She concluded she was still 

in favor of this project. 
 

Mr. Coppel said the applicant heard what the Commission said about the single-family homes and 
thought maybe the problem was with the way they presented the elevations. He believes the Commission 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
May 21, 2015 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 23 of 23 

 
will be pleased with their submission at the Final Development Plan. He asked that the application be 

moved forward with the conditions and that a recommendation of approval be made to City Council. 

 
Ms. Newell said if her vote was requested tonight with the text in front of her, she would vote no. She 

said she likes this project and would like to see it move forward but is not comfortable voting when the 
architectural details are not there. She said sometimes the property is not developed and then the 

Commission is stuck with that text.  
 

Ms. Salay agreed and asked if the Preliminary Plat could be moved along. The Chair said it could not be 

moved forward.  
 

Ms. Salay said she would like to see this application tabled.  
 

Mr. Miller agreed.  

 
Ms. De Rosa said the applicant is so close to achieving a recommendation of approval.  

 
Ms. Menerey requested suggestions as to how the Commission would like to see the development text 

refined. She said it would be really helpful if they could spend a few minutes discussing what specific 

things would make this Commission more comfortable with the current verbiage. 
 

Ms. Newell said an example of a community of all siding is Seaside in Florida. She said it is completely 
sided with very unique buildings that have a lot of great architectural detail. She said she would be happy 

if the applicant came up with a community that was using a mix of stone and siding to develop that 
character. She said pictorial examples were needed for the text. She said if there are to be central 

features of the single-family homes, show those examples and that those options are available.  

 
Ms. Menerey said Avondale Woods text includes a sketch showing some of the gable detailing and 

detailing on the stoop cover. 
 

Mr. Brown said he agreed with what Ms. Newell was saying. He said the example of Seaside, FL is one of 

his favorite places and one of the first really great form-based architecture zoned communities that was 
so successful. He said there is such a great feel to the entire community and they defined it in their text 

in conjunction with diagrams. He recommended the applicant pin it down; establish and define a 
character and it will be easy to agree to.  

 
Ms. Menerey said they choose to table the application if that is the choice of the Commission.  

 

Motion and Vote 
Mr. Brown made a motion, Ms. Salay seconded, to table this application for a Rezoning with Preliminary 

Development Plan and Preliminary Plat. The vote was as follows: Ms. Newell, yes; Ms. De Rosa, yes; Mr. 
Miller, yes; Mr. Stidhem, yes; Mr. Brown, yes; and Ms. Salay, yes. (Approved 6 – 0) 

 

Communications 
Ms. Husak said there are some projects coming up that might prompt a second meeting in July. She said 

there is only one meeting currently scheduled for that month. She said the proposed dates are July 16th, 
or 21st and requested responses via email. 

 

The Chair adjourned the meeting at 10:51 p.m. 
 

 
 

As approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on __________________, 2015. 























Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 18, 2014 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 16 of 23 

 
The Chair said there were three motions and three votes before them.  
 
Mr. Close said the difficulty with this project, when dedicating more than 40 percent of the value to open 
space, is that there are constrictions on what can be done. He said 37 lots is about where the applicant 
can make this happen. He estimated Romanelli & Hughes Building Company have 40 percent of the lots 
already reserved and understands architecture can be a matter of taste, but with those comments in 
mind, he asked the Commission to table this application.  
 
The Chair said to provide clear direction, the Commission is not necessarily asking the applicant to lose 
any lots, but maybe reconfigure the way the structure might be set on the lot.  
 
Mr. Close said the reality is these homes are going to be $700,000 and up as they are proposed now. He 
said if they lose another lot, then economics stop working.  
 
The Chair said that was not the request of the body here.  
 
Mr. Close said they can fix the driveways and look into the architecture.  
 
Ms. Kramb said she was fine with the number of lots as this is what the Commission decided upon in the 
Preliminary Development Plan so she expected these would be tight.  
 
Mr. Close said he understood what was said about side elevations.  
 
Ms. Amorose Groomes said it was not as much the lots themselves as it is the setting of the structures 
on the lots, what we have seen, and what we might like to see.  
 
The Chair asked if there was a motion on the floor to table this application.  
 
Motion and Vote  
 
Mr. Taylor moved, Ms. Salay seconded, to table this application for a Final Development Plan and Final 
Plat. The vote was as follows: Ms. Kramb, yes; Mr. Hardt, yes; Ms. Newell, yes; Mr. Zimmerman, yes; 
Ms. Amorose Groomes, yes; Ms. Salay, yes; and Mr. Taylor, yes. (Approved 7 – 0)  
 
3. Ballantrae, Subarea S and Liggett Property Cosgray Road 

 14-083INF Informal Review 

 
The Chair Chris Amorose Groomes introduced this application for a request for a potential residential 
development of 141 residences consisting of with detached condominiums and single family lots on 
approximately 49 acres, east of Cosgray Road and the Conrail railroad tracks. 
 
Devayani Puranik said this is an informal review for Ballantrae Subarea S and Liggett property for 
residential development. She presented the site, which is located east of Cosgray Road, north of Rings 
Road, east of CSC railroad tracks and a Cosgray Rings Road connector is proposed along eastern 
property line of Churchman Road. She showed where the Links at Ballantrae are located east of 
Churchman Road consisting of a multi-family development and where the Woodlands at Ballantrae are 
further east. She explained that all the parcels along the southwest corner of the property are within 
Washington Township, Village of Amlin, outside of Rings Road. 
 
Ms. Puranik said the character of these areas is large lot residential with some limited commercial 
activity along Rings Road. She said the northern portion of the property is zoned PLR-Planned Low 
Density Residential, Ballantrae Subarea S and a 70-unit condominium development is approved as part 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 18, 2014 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 17 of 23 

 
of that PUD, and the lower portion is zoned R-Rural. She said the applicant is processing a parallel 
application to annex the southwest corner of the site from Washington Township. 
 
Ms. Puranik presented the existing conditions showing: the site still being farmed as seen from 
Woodlands at Ballantrae; the view of some mature tree rows along the railroad tracks from the 
southwest corner; and the view of the road south in the township that is essentially used as an alley by 
the village residents. 
 
Ms. Puranik presented the Community Plan (future land use plan) that recommends Mixed Residential 
Medium Density land use that is five units per acre. She said the areas are anticipated to have greater 
walkability and pedestrian orientation at a village scale and are part of the Southwest Area Plan. She 
said the Village of Amlin has a unique and quaint character that should be protected as adjacent 
development occurs and future residential development in the area should provide adequate separation 
with open space to visually define a clear transition between traditional neighborhood design and the 
surrounding area. She indicated the Plan also shows linkages from the site toward east to Churchman 
Road and from the development south to Rings Road for easy access to Village Center. 
 
Ms. Puranik presented the proposed site plan that showed three entrances off of Churchman Road, one 
of which is a continuation of Marmion Drive through the Woodlands at Ballantrae. She explained the 
total site is 51 acres of which 4.6 acres are for Churchman Road. She said the proposal consists of 47 
single- family lots within the northern section of the site and 94 detached condominium lots within the 
southern section. She stated that density is 3.01 units per acre. She said the setback along Churchman 
Road is 200 feet, along the railroad tracks is 100 feet, and 30 – 50 feet is proposed along the southern 
property line. She said a total of 14 acres of open space is provided, which includes the existing tree 
cover. 
 
Ms. Puranik said the first discussion point relates to the layout of the site. She said since the Community 
Plan is recommending: mixed residential, medium density, more walkable/pedestrian friendly, and 
should integrate the single-family lots with condominium units as opposed to two separate isolated 
sections for single-family and condominium units. She said the plan also talks about integrating open 
space as part of the development and having the connectivity of pedestrian links. 
 
Ms. Puranik noted the second discussion question, which refers to the character of the western and 
southern setback. She said the Commission recently approved 100-foot setbacks from the railroad 
tracks, which included the buffer that is a combination of mound/fences and landscaping. Regarding the 
southern setback, she said the Plan recommends that The Village of Amlin’s unique and quaint character 
should be protected as adjacent development occurs, and future residential development in the area 
should provide adequate separation with open space to visually define a clear transition between 
traditional neighborhood design and the surrounding area. 
 
Ms. Puranik said the third discussion question relates to the street connectivity. She said entrances are 
provided along Churchman Road and if this project were to move forward, another connection would be 
necessary around the western setback. She explained that Engineering recommended that all right angle 
turns be avoided and to rework the network around the central gazebo area. She said Planning and 
Engineering is recommending public streets for the entire development for simplifying maintenance 
responsibilities. She added the stormwater detention pond will have to be reworked to provide adequate 
distance between Churchman Road and the ponds. She said the Southwest Plan illustrates connection 
from the site to Rings Road to the south and a pedestrian connection might be beneficial for the 
residents of proposed development to walk to Village Center as envisioned development occurs. 
 
Ms. Puranik addressed the fourth discussion question and presented the proposed architecture for 
single- family homes. She said the elevations are two-story homes with porches, garages with arches, 
and dormers and the materials are stone and cementitious siding. She said detailing reflects village 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 18, 2014 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 18 of 23 

 
character and most of the elevations have front loaded garages while there is an auto-court access 
option. She presented the proposed architecture for the detached condominiums. She said they are a 
story and a half ranch style with the majority of the elevations having front loaded garages. Again, she 
said the detailing reflects village character like the single-family homes and material treatments are 
consistent creating rhythmic patterns. 
 
Ms. Amorose Groomes asked if the applicant was present and would like to add to the presentation. 
 
Paul Coppel, co-owner of Schottenstein Homes, said this was their first venture in the City of Dublin, 
although not new to the area. He said Schottenstein Homes is named after his partner, Steve and their 
genesis is MI Homes as Steve was COO for that organization for many years. He reported that they have 
one project currently in the Dublin school district but not in the City of Dublin. He said between the 
current four projects, they plan to close between 90 and 100 homes this year. He said their intention 
with this project is to do something that satisfies the existing neighborhoods in Ballantrae. He indicated 
they have had meetings with the leadership of the two Ballantrae Homeowner’s Associations. He said 
Linda Menerey would go over the plan and respond to some of the concerns along with Jack Reynolds 
and George Acock. 
 
Linda Menerey, EMH&T, said one thing this plan achieves is connectivity through Churchman Road, the 
pedestrian ways, and open space. She said they have extensive buffers and corrected Ms. Puranik’s 
statement about setbacks; the setback off of Churchman Road and the railroad track is actually 100 
feet. She said there is a varied setback along the Amlin alley, from 30 – 50 feet. She said they took into 
account all the surrounding areas. She highlighted the single family homes in the north portion, which 
follow the typical Dublin style and in the lower, condominium area they made the transition to what was 
happening in the Amlin neighborhood. Ms. Menerey said she believes they can work within the 
stormwater ponds and wanted to keep those along the frontage as a design amenity to give recognition 
to this particular area. She noted that most of the houses front Churchman Road, with a large setback 
providing green space. 
 
George Acock, Acock Associates Architects, Columbus, Ohio said he resides in Granville, Ohio. He said 
they are trying to provide affordable housing in a way that is consistent with the architecture that has 
been built in small towns. He said in the 50s & 60s, when TV and air conditioning appeared on the 
scene, things changed. He said people pulled their car into the garage that was the first element you 
saw, living in the family room in the back of the house, and porches were removed. He said they are 
trying to bring porches back and soften the power of a 16-foot garage door in appropriate scale to what 
he considers regional architecture that is very simple, mostly wood houses with 15-foot front setbacks. 
He said this will provide a neighborhood feel to promote engagement amongst neighbors; it will feel like 
a community. He said they have designed simple materials and proportions including standard windows 
and details that have been around for a long time, proving to be charming. 
 
Mr. Coppel showed samples of the plot plans of the two varying kind of products, pointing out the 
single- family elevations and the condominiums. He said they have deemphasized the garage and added 
porches in all of them. He said their target market for these condominiums is obviously mature adults or 
empty nesters, and that the markets for those now are detached units and not attached units. He stated 
many of the people that respond to this analysis do side-yard outdoor living whereas we think it is better 
to have rear-yard outdoor living in those detached units. He said they are trying to provide a little 
different architecture than Ballantrae but be very compatible with no exposed foundations and using all 
natural materials. 
 
The Chair invited public comment from anyone that would like to speak on behalf of this application. 
[Hearing none.] 
 
Richard Taylor asked for clarification on the different plans. 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 18, 2014 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 19 of 23 

 
Mr. Acock noted the first ones they were working on and said they will use those but it is the same type 
of style and floor plan. 
 
Ms. Amorose Groomes said the last four elevations are the same. Mr. Taylor confirmed they were all 
single-family units. 
 
Ms. Menerey clarified that some of the elevations were mislabeled. She pointed out, some were 
condominiums, one that could be both elevations, and there are a couple that are the single-family 
style. 
 
Mr. Taylor said at some future date with an update to this proposal, he would like to see for the 
detached condominium units maybe show a few of those in context because they are not going to sit 
isolated the way the elevations are currently shown. He would like to see how 7 – 10 units would play 
together on streetscape. 
 
Ms. Menerey presented a line drawing that reflects what Mr. Taylor requested. Mr. Taylor said it gave 
him a whole different prospective. 
 
Ms. Menerey presented the single-family board. 
 
Mr. Taylor said he appreciated the small town perspective. He stated in the overall site plan he sees 
some contradictions to what Mr. Acock said about the small town arrangement. For example, he said, in 
the center of the attached condominiums, there is a really tiny green space with a gazebo and this 
should be much larger. He said he was a little confused about the reason for the big setback off of 
Churchman Road, which put all of that green space, the pods, and everything on the outskirts of this 
development, which further isolates it from the rest of the community. He said bringing those things into 
the middle, make them amenities for the whole neighborhood to enjoy and allow this development to 
push out to the borders a little bit more and possibly engage more fully with the communities next door. 
He said the existing grove of trees looks like it is remaining untouched. He asked if there was some way 
to rearrange the street network to run along the borders of that grove to provide an amenity for all 
instead of as a backyard for a few. He said there is a grove of trees in the middle of Brandon Way 
neighborhood and the streets run on several sides of that and is heavily used by the residents. He 
indicated the paths are very informal as they are not paved. He concluded he liked the concept and the 
density that is being proposed that is less than what is allowed, but believes the applicant could go 
further in making this more village- like and using the green spaces and amenities that are accessible to 
everyone as opposed to pushing to the perimeter and isolate the whole community. 
 
John Hardt said he agreed with Mr. Taylor as the fundamentals are headed in the right direction. He 
said he appreciates that the density is less than what is allowed. He noted on the drawings received in 
their packet there is a space across from the proposed road, where the road appears to pass within a 
few feet of the drive-way of the development on the other side and he wondered if that was accurate or 
not. He said if it is he suggests Churchman Road not to be straight. He said that is an oddity that needs 
to be resolved. 
 
Mr. Hardt addressed the discussion questions. He said he agrees with the applicant that he does not 
think it makes sense to integrate the single-family homes and condominiums with each other but he said 
it does make a lot of sense to connect them to the different areas not only to each other but to things 
outside this development getting more connectivity to the streets. 
 
Mr. Hardt inquired about the 30-foot setback to the south and asked if the whole area should be 
oriented so that the pattern of development and the streets respect the layout of Amlin. He said the 
residents of Amlin may think that is a horrible idea but he thought there is an opportunity to take the 
charm that is already there and expand on it rather than turning your back to it. 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 18, 2014 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 20 of 23 

 
Mr. Hardt said the level of detail they are looking at for architecture is heading in the right direction. He 
is concerned that when seen all together, there are a lot of different variations of detached 
condominiums that all have the same rooflines. He encouraged the applicant to mix the rooflines up and 
get the massing a little bit different; varying the material is not going to be sufficient. 
 
Mr. Hardt said the western setback along Cosgray Road should more or less match what is north on 
Cosgray Road to the balance of Ballantrae. He said the south 100-foot setback that is the railroad track, 
is appropriate, generally. He indicated he assumed the trees that were there today would be protected, 
maintained, and augmented. 
 
Amy Salay agreed about providing access to the woods and perhaps having a bike path available to 
everyone. She indicated she is concerned about the proximity of the railroad tracks because the sounds 
of the train horns can be so loud and interruptive into family life. She suggests as development 
continues, the Commission consider a railroad quiet zone. She said she would like to see the green by 
the gazebo expanded. She is not in favor of any private streets; she wants Dublin standard public 
streets. She said single-family units and condominiums should be mixed. She said she loved the 
architecture, the detail, the idea of the village, but wants to make sure the front porches are actually 
deep enough to be useful. She indicated some of the front porches in Dublin neighborhoods are so 
narrow you can barely fit a chair. She questioned the term “affordable”. She would like to see a limit on 
the use of cementitious siding and prefers the mix of Hardieplank and stone. She said all lap siding 
might be preferable to some prospective residents because it would less expensive than all stone. She 
asked if Churchman Road has to be straight because it looks strange here. She said she is pleased that 
the applicant has met with the neighbors. 
 
Todd Zimmerman said it is nice to see the decrease in density from five units per acre to three units per 
acre. He addressed the discussion questions: 
 

1) He asked if integration could be changed slightly without giving up the density ratio or green 
space. 

2) He said he is all for the mounds, evergreens, or whatever if it is possible to keep the mature 
trees but is really not a fan of fencing as it is not natural and becomes a maintenance issue 
down the road. 

3) He would like to see public streets for both projects. 
4) He likes the architecture and housing stock, something that Dublin does not have. 
5) He would like to see a matrix of the detached condominiums so we could have a good mix of 

variation for the 94 condominium units at the end. He suggested working with Staff to achieve 
this variety. 

 
Amy Kramb said the two products do not need to be integrated, there needs to be more connectivity. 
She said her biggest issue was having useable open space. She noted the wonderful tree grove that only 
the 15 lots that back up to it will see. She said with the ponds up front, she thinks access may be 
limited. She said when the applicant comes back, she wants to see the sidewalks; walking paths; bike 
paths; how residents will be able to get around the site; and how the residents would be able to get 
down to Rings Road to use the open space. She does not like the southern end how it backs up to 
Amlin. She suggested a better transition or treatment there than putting up a bunch of vegetation and 
starting this new development. She said the architecture was going in the right direction, and she was 
generally supportive of the concept, density, and location. 
 
Victoria Newell said the two products do not have to be intermixed in terms of integration but she would 
like to see the pedestrian connections intermixed and developed little further. She would like the green 
space at the gazebo larger. She said the sites along Amlin should be treated sensitively. She questioned 
the setbacks and the buffer along the railroad tracks. 
 



Dublin Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 18, 2014 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 21 of 23 

 
Ms. Menerey explained it was a hand-drawn sketch that Ms. Newell was referring to which was not to 
scale and would ensure the 100-foot setback by the railroad tracks. 
 
Ms. Newell continued, for developing the internal green space, the setback off of Churchman Road can 
be reduced. She said she really liked the porches. 
 
Ms. Amorose Groomes said she admittedly did not drive through the site so she does not know what the 
back of the adjacent properties look like. She indicated the alleyway does need to integrate into 
something that was not going to add value. She said she wanted to drive through the site before making 
much of a statement at the next step. She stated she agreed with everything that had been said by her 
fellow Commissioners and appreciates the use of materials and the historical perspective on the 
architecture. She indicated ‘what is old should become new again’ in most situations and seems 
appropriate here. 
 
The Chair said she would give the applicant time respond if there were any questions or needed 
clarification. 
 
Mr. Coppel said he just had one question on the land plan. He said he thought there was a consensus of 
the Commission that the setback be reduced along Churchman Road. 
 
The Chair said for the point of clarity, what she thought the applicant heard this Commission say was 
that they wanted a larger, useable green space that would be consistent with the type of architecture 
shown and are willing to give some other green spaces to accommodate that. She said she also heard 
from several of her fellow Commissioners there was an opportunity to interact with the grove of trees, 
either by relocating the street or by putting a bike path through there. 
The Chair called for public comment from anyone that wanted to address this Commission with regards 
to this application. 
 
Patrick O’Brien, 5646 Marmion Drive, said he resided exactly across the street from Churchman Road as 
proposed. He said the Woodlands of Ballantrae residents have been very comfortable with this project 
on a whole because of the existence of this 100-foot buffer along Churchman Road. He said they have 
attached housing and this is 147 units to contrast with the existing 64 units. He said the green space 
and water effects are significant and aesthetically and functionally isolating the Woodlands from 
whatever the applicant has in this project, which we know is not going to be attached like the existing 
product. He said the idea of converting some of that buffer space into the gazebo type area is very nice 
in terms of just that project on its own but it does not necessarily reflect the entrance of people on the 
other side of the street. He said there needs to be a balancing of interests when that is redesigned. 
 
Don Seager, 6890 Foresthaven Loop, said he was a resident of Woodlands of Ballantrae and was on the 
Woodland’s and Ballantrae’s Boards. He reported they liked the 100-foot setback and do not want to see 
that changed. He said he agreed to put a bike path through the grove of trees but would not want a 
street to mess up the trees. He suggested that Amlin not be integrated as they are not cute little 
houses. He said he agreed with making the streets larger as there are issues with private streets. He 
emphasized the setback is what they like. 
 
The Chair said for the point of clarity, the Commission does not necessarily want to put something 
through these woods, just provide access to the perimeter of them. 
 
Ms. Newell said she wanted to clarify an earlier comment; she did not want to see a wall of landscaping 
not treated sensitively and should not be one big wall between this project and Amlin but rather a nice 
amenity. 
 
 


	17-013AFDP ROA
	History
	Minutes
	C3_History
	17-013_Zoning
	ROA
	031016 Minutes
	C2_History





